
West Windsor Selectboard 

Draft Minutes 

August 24, 2020 

 

Present at Town Hall: Win Johnson, Brett Myers, Mike Spackman, Cathy Archibald, Tom 

Kenyon, Bill Young, Mary Anne Boyce, Kate Burr, Aaron Gonthier (Windsor on Air) 

Present via zoom/phone: Martha Harrison, Deb Shearer, Christine Erickson 
 

1) Call to Order – Selectboard Chair Win Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:45 PM.  

2) Changes or additions to the agenda – sewer bills, cemetery deeds, Route 44 mowing, leftover 

manholes, sewer sag status, target practice near Seems Road, Ascutney Outdoors meeting 

minutes, letter of support for Discovery Trail, voting in November, census 

3) Announcements/Public Comment – None  

4) Coronavirus Updates – Mike said he received a shipment of free cloth masks and will 

arrange a time and place to give them away to West Windsor residents.  

5) Public Use of the Town Hall – Win said Mary-Anne Boyce contacted him about using the 

Town Hall for the writers’ group, the Bone Builders, and the Friends of the Library. Win said 

he thinks the upstairs hall could accommodate 30 to 35 people spaced six feet apart, and 

another 15 in the balcony. Win said he didn’t see a mask requirement in Mary Anne’s 

proposed guidelines. Mary Anne said she didn’t include that since it’s already required by the 

State. Mary Anne noted that it’s hard to exercise with a mask, but the participants will be six 

fee (or one cow) apart. Mary Anne said everyone would bring their own weights and be 

screened using the CDC protocol, along with a no-touch thermometer. If the bathroom is 

used, it would be wiped down. Mary Anne said there are usually between six and eight 

participants, most of whom are over the age of 70. People who aren’t feeling well don’t 

attend. Mary Anne said Bone Builders meets on Mondays and Wednesdays from 9:00 AM 

until 10:00 AM, and the Friends group meets the second Monday of the month at 10:00 AM 

so they would be delayed while the wipe-down is being done. Mary Anne said the writers’ 

group meets on the second and fourth Tuesday of the month so they’ll need to figure out how 

to access the hall after hours. Brett said allowing the use of the Town Hall is worth a try. 

With the understanding that the groups will be conforming with the guidelines Mary Anne 

has presented, Win moved to authorize the groups to use the hall in a safe and 

responsible way. Brett seconded the motion. Martha suggested asking users to sign a 

liability waiver. Brett said that’s probably a good idea. Martha suggested a simple 

acknowledgement that participants are doing so at their own risk. Win said he can see that for 

the Bone Builders but thinks it’s excessive for the writers’ group. Mary Anne said Bone 

Builder participants have to have a note from their doctor. Mary Anne said she also has an 

attendance check list. Deb said each group should have a list of who attended each session 

for contact tracing purposes. Mary Anne said the Friends group includes attendance in their 

minutes. Win said he doesn’t think Certificates of Insurance are necessary. Martha said she 

was not suggesting a Certificate, just a liability waiver. Win said the Bone Builders already 

do that. Brett said a doctor’s note is not a waiver of responsibility for the town. Win asked 

Mary Anne to make it clear in her guidelines that anyone who is participating is doing so at 

their own risk. Win also asked Mary Anne to let Cathy or Martha know how many 

participants there are at each meeting. Win called for a vote on the motion, which passed 

unanimously.   



6) Shooting near Seems Road – Win said Christine contacted him about the recent target 

shooting near Seems Road. Win said he heard it too and it’s disruptive; whether or not it’s a 

violation of our noise ordinance is another question. Christine said it happened this year and 

last year; it’s very scary and it went on for four hours. Christine read the definition of 

“unreasonable noise” from the ordinance, which says, “Any excessive or unusually loud 

sound heard by neighbors either inside or outside their homes which either annoys, disturbs, 

injures or endangers the comfort…” Christine said she is fine with guns, she grew up with 

them, and her dad was a police officer; she has no problem when guns are used responsibly 

but she feels this is irresponsible behavior. Tom said it’s hard to identify who is doing it and 

who is the responsible party. Win said it’s his understanding that the property owner invites 

his buddies up for this event once a year. Last year, it sounded like automatic weapons were 

being used and Win wrote a letter suggesting that it might be a violation of state law. Win 

said he got a short response saying that the people shooting were police officers, who know 

the laws and how to use guns, and no automatic weapons were fired. Win noted a statement 

he made in the September 3, 2019 Selectboard minutes, related to a similar incident that 

occurred last year. Win said when the Selectboard proposed a noise ordinance, they got a lot 

of pushback from residents who said noise issues should be discussed among neighbors 

before the town gets involved. Win said it would be helpful to know if there has been any 

outreach from the neighbors to the property owners. Bill agreed that the target shooting is 

very disruptive. Bill added that he’s not sure, but he thinks rapid-fire shooting is not even 

allowed at gun clubs in the area. Win said he would encourage the neighbors to reach out to 

the property owners. In addition, Win suggested a petition from Seems Road neighbors. Brett 

noted that the shooting was heard along Bible Hill as well. Christine said she is willing to 

help with a petition. There was discussion about whether bump stocks were being used and 

Win noted that the property owner denied using bump stocks when asked about that last year. 

Tom said he would prefer to approach the situation through the noise ordinance. Win said the 

ordinance specifically says that the neighbors should try to work it out before the Town gets 

involved.   

7) Review police report on abandoned vehicle – Win said he thinks this is resolved. There is an 

abandoned vehicle in the Ski Tow Road parking lot, close to the helicopter landing area. The 

police put a sticker on it today saying that if it is not moved within 48 hours, it will be towed. 

Mike asked who owns it. Win said the police won’t tell us.  

8) Consider request to rescind municipal ticket – Win said someone who registered their dog 

much too late got a ticket and, now that the dog has been registered, would like the ticket to 

be forgiven. Win said he doesn’t think the Selectboard should forgive the ticket unless 

there’s a very good reason to do so. Martha said she asked the police for the dog owner’s 

contact information and was told that they would convey the message for us. Bill said he 

visited the dog owner three times and Cathy said she called him twice before the police 

issued a ticket. Tom said you can register your dog starting on January 2nd.   

9) Town Clerk’s report – Orders: Win said he sent the orders to the Selectboard. Brett didn’t 

have any questions. Year-to-date financial information: Win said we seem to be in fairly 

good shape. With the highway budget, we’re over budget on the Burke property and grader 

repairs. Cemetery deed: Win said Cathy has a cemetery deed for lots I-9, J-10 and J-11. Brett 

moved to authorize Win to sign the cemetery deed. Win seconded the motion, which 

passed unanimously.  



10) Highway – Foreman’s report: Mike said the deck was poured for the second Harrington Road 

project this morning and, tentatively, the road will be open on August 31st, pending the 

results of a concrete strength test. Mike said the Sheddsville Better Roads project is done; 

we’re just waiting for the bills to come in. Mike said he and Erik are both taking time off 

next week so Dave Perry will be in charge. Mike said they will start fall scraping after Labor 

Day. They’re doing a ditching project on Silver Hill right now and will do another one on 

Kimball Farm Road. Win asked how the roads are holding up under the torrential rain storms 

we’ve been having. Mike said where they have done ditching work, there’s hardly any 

damage. Route 44 mowing: Win said the Governor retracted some of the funding for contract 

mowing due to the Covid crisis and that may be why Route 44 has not been mowed yet this 

year. Rush Meadow Road speed limit discussion: Kate said 35 MPH is too fast for the 

section of Rush Meadow from Jacquith Road south to the Ladd and Makita properties, those 

areas are very curvy and, with the ditching, the road is more narrow, and there are a lot of 

people riding bikes and walking. Kate noted that Sheddsville and Cemetery Roads have a 30 

MPH speed limit. Kate suggested having the speed limit reassessed after the state-mandated 

ditching. Win said the speed cart has been up there for the past week. Kate said she doesn’t 

think most people are exceeding the speed limit; she thinks the speed limit is too high for that 

section. Further south, Kate said, the road is wider and less curvy. Brett said there’s a lot of 

recreational activity on the road. Mike said we would have to hire the police or the sheriff to 

do a study. Mike said people are going to go as fast as they can regardless of what the speed 

limit sign says. Win asked if the Regional Planning Commission (RPC) can do the study. 

Martha said they have done it for us before; whether that strictly complies with the 

regulations or not, she’s not sure. Win said the Town will review the procedure and put it on 

the next agenda.  

11) Transfer Station update – Win said he has no idea why the RPC is not involved but 

Weathersfield is welcoming the participation of DSM Environmental, which has offered to 

do some pro bono work for them. Win said the evidence to support a $44,000 appropriation 

from West Windsor isn’t there, but we should hear more about this from DSM and 

Weathersfield in the near future.  

12) Stormwater update – Win briefly reviewed the history of the expired stormwater permit for 

the resort area. Last year, the interested parties agreed to sign an MOU outlining an approach 

for renewing the permit, which includes hiring an engineer to do a report. Win said the 

parties need to actually sign the MOU so the Town can contract with Fitzgerald 

Environmental Associates to do the work. Win said the permit renewal will not resolve the 

issue with the two eroded gullies but the RPC thinks they can get grant funding for those.  

13) Sewer and Water updates – Sewer: Martha said the sewer project is done but there were some 

leftover manhole parts and some of them were on private property so we told the contractor 

he needs to move them to Town property before we give him his final payment. Supposedly 

he agreed to move them, Martha said, but she doesn’t know if it has been done or not. Mike 

said, as of this morning, it had not been done. Win asked about the sag investigation. Martha 

said, according to Jason, he has consulted with various contractors and they all think we 

should leave it alone. Win said he thought we were going to get someone to go in with a 

camera and look for cracks. Martha said Green Mountain Pipe is not returning Jason’s calls, 

but she can ask him to call someone else. Win asked Martha to see what she can do, and to 

keep the Selectboard posted on the status of the leftover materials.  Water: Martha said the 

water project is done too but Daniels has not provided the payroll certifications for his 



electrical subcontractor so A+E is not inclined to approve their final pay request. Martha said 

it looks like the water project will come in slightly under budget.  

14) Other Business – Sewer bills: Tom said some people don’t think they have to pay their sewer 

bills and the rest of the sewer users have to carry the burden. Tom suggested that a list of 

people who are delinquent on their bills could be mailed out with the next round of bills. 

Tom said he will raise the issue with the Utility Advisory Committee. Win asked Cathy to 

provide a list of outstanding payments. AO minutes: Win said in the interest of keeping the 

Town informed, Ascutney Outdoors has sent, and will continue to send, minutes and reports. 

They also sent a map and plan of trails they’re proposing. Win said some of these documents 

are in the shared folder. Win said one of the trails, the Discovery Trail, is a short trail on the 

lower mountain with interpretive signage. The National Park Service is helping with this 

trail. Win said Natalie Starr has asked the Selectboard to sign a letter supporting AO’s grant 

application for the project. Brett moved to authorize Win to sign the letter of support. 

Win seconded the motion. Tom asked about the financial impact on the Town. Win said he 

thinks the trail will be great for hotel guests. Tom asked if it will be ADA accessible. Win 

said no. Win called for a vote on the motion, which passed unanimously.  Census: Win 

said West Windsor’s response rate is 47.6%; in 2010, our response rate was 53.4%. Brett 

asked if it has to be done on-line. Martha said no; you can do it by calling the number we 

have posted outside the Town Hall. Tom asked if part-time, non-residents are supposed to fill 

it out. Martha said yes; second home owners are supposed to fill it out. There’s a flyer that 

explains what they’re supposed to do, which Martha sent to the Utility Advisory Committee 

with a request for their help in distributing it. Win said that explains why our response rate is 

so low. Win suggested putting something up in the store and reaching out again to our 

contacts on the mountain. November election: Win said it’s his understanding that ballots are 

going to be mailed to people at the end of August and people can submit them between 

September 20th and November 2nd. Win said there are two questions: how do we encourage 

people to vote, and how do we count them. Win said Cathy’s going to write something 

explaining how to go about voting and who to contact with questions. In that communication, 

Win said we can encourage people to vote early and let them know they can drop off their 

ballot, but we can’t start counting early. Cathy confirmed that we’re a hand-count town so we 

can’t start early. Brett asked if ballots can be picked up from people who are house-bound. 

Cathy said no; they mail their bills so they can mail their ballots. Win said we can put 

Cathy’s instructions on the website and the Front Porch Forum and we can put something on 

the sandwich board. Brett suggested putting something on the bulletin board too.  

15) Approve Minutes – Brett moved to approve the minutes of August 10th.  Win seconded 

the motion, which passed unanimously.   

16) Adjourn – Brett moved to adjourn at 8:02 PM. Win seconded the motion, which passed 

unanimously. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Martha Harrison 


